Contact Officer: Jenny Bryce-Chan

KIRKLEES COUNCIL

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Thursday 22nd November 2018

Present: Dr Steve Ollerton (Chair)

Councillor Musarrat Khan

Carol McKenna Richard Parry Fatima Khan-Shah Helen Hunter

Jacqui Gedman

In attendance: Naz Parkar

Helen Bewsher Tom Brailsford Phil Longworth Owen Richardson

Observers: Councillor Elizabeth Smaje

Tim Breedon

Diane McKerracher Catherine Riley Tracy Standerline

Apologies: Councillor Shabir Pandor (Chair)

Councillor Donna Bellamy Councillor Viv Kendrick Councillor Kath Pinnock

Dr David Kelly

Rachel Spencer-Henshall

23 Membership of the Board/Apologies

Apologies were received from the following Board members: Cllr Shabir Pandor, Cllr Kath Pinnock, Cllr Viv Kendrick, Cllr Donna Bellamy, Dr David Kelly, Rachel Spencer-Henshall and Katherine Hilliam.

Emily Parry-Harries attended as sub for Rachel Spencer-Henshall and Dr Nadeem Ghafoor attended as sub for Dr David Kelly.

24 Minutes of previous meeting

That the minutes of the meeting held on the 6 September 2018 be approved as a correct record.

25 Interests

No Interest were declared.

26 Admission of the Public

All agenda items be considered in public session.

27 Deputations/Petitions

No deputations or petitions received

28 Public Question Time

Cllr Smaje asked a question under agenda item 10.

29 Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017-2018

Richard Parry, Strategic Director for Adults and Health, advised that owing to personal circumstances, Mike Houghton-Evans, Independent Chair of the Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board, was unable to attend the meeting.

In summary the Board was advised that:

- each year the annual report goes to Overview and Scrutiny and, to the Health and Wellbeing Board which has oversight of the activities taking place
- The annual report represents the work of the Board over the past 12 months rather than individual organisations and is a rolling 3-year plan, updated on an annual basis
- The independent chair was appointed in 2015
- the aim is to make sure there is better engagement with public to prevent the risk of harm rather than reacting
- KSAB needs to think more broadly for example modern day slavery.
- an independent peer challenge will be undertaken through Local Government Association that will look at work of the board
- KSAB continues to evolve and undertakes task and finish groups and learning from incidents.

The Board questioned how the conversation with the public takes place and how accessible the report is and if it had been shared with stakeholders. In response, the Board was advised that it goes to multiple organisation's governing bodies, however there is a piece of work to be done with Healthwatch to translate a set of messages. An example was given of the Children's Safeguarding Board's annual report which had been simplified to make it more accessible.

It was suggested that going forward that it might be useful to produce a suite of key public facing documents which are similar in style, formatting and language.

The Board agreed that there should be a special acknowledgement of the late Hazel Wigmore, who was a long standing lay member who contributed to the work of KSAB.

The Board commented that it was a thorough document.

RESOLVED -

- a) That the Board receive the Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017/18.
- b) That a special thank you goes to the late Hazel Wigmore for her contribution to the work of the KSAB

30 Housing & Health

Naz Parkar, Service Director for Growth and Housing provided an update on the role of housing in integrated health and social care. The Board was informed that housing has always been a key element of health and social care as housing is a key determinant of health and wellbeing.

The Board was informed that in terms of background:

- Anticipated population growth 47,800 by 2031
- Demand for housing outstrips supplies
- Aging population in Kirklees set to increase by 39% for those aged 85+ and 19/20% increase in the over 65s
- Growing demand in certain groups for example homelessness, Learning Disability, Mental Health and Domestic Violence
- High levels of fuel poverty
- Quality of private rented properties and health and safety risk

Identifying and addressing housing needs through accommodation that is well designed and high quality is vital. In Kirklees, the aim is to build the right homes in the right places that are affordable, high quality and flexible with an adaptable design. It is delivering innovation and growth in conjunction with communities and partners.

The Local Plan will deliver 31,100 properties across Kirklees and the plan will include, extra care accommodation for older people, specialist accommodation for key vulnerable groups and supported housing units. The developing proposals will also include children's homes, temporary homelessness hostel and independent supported living.

The Board questioned whether the transport infrastructure had been factored in and commented that the trains' only serve part of North Kirklees and therefore the bus network will need to be improved. The Board also reinforced the need for detailed discussions with healthcare commissioners and providers about the most appropriate way to ensure those people moving into the new developments have access to the full range of community health services.

The Board thanked Naz Parkar for providing an update and felt that a further timely update should be provided

RESOLVED - That Naz Parkar be thanked for providing an update on the role of housing in integrated health and social care and that he be invited back to provide further timely updates on specific issues.

Owen Richardson advised the Board that the updated Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment Overview section provides a summary of the KJSA which also signposts to more detailed information. The information being presented takes an asset-based approach and includes new intelligence that was not available last year. Once approved by the Board, it will replace the Kirklees Overview 2017/18.

In summary the Board was informed:-

- As little as 10% of a population's health and wellbeing is linked to access to health care
- There are a number of wider determinants of health to be considered, including the various impacts of deprivation and socioeconomic status, education and the physical and social environments
- Most of the projected increase in population in Kirklees will be in older age groups, leading to an increase in the dependency ratio
- Support from family, friends and the local community helps prevent isolation and loneliness and contributes to good mental wellbeing
- In some wards, people will spend an average of more than 20 years in poor health and most people will spend part of their working life in poor health
- In Kirklees, healthy life expectancy is worse than the national average
- New intelligence from the Kirklees Young People's Survey showed girls tend to be less satisfied, have lower wellbeing and worry more than boys, and that most of the key health-related behaviours have improved since the previous survey in 2014
- Male suicide rates have increased recently and are much higher than female suicide rates; work is ongoing to reduce the number of suicides in Kirklees

The Board raised questions about the definition of healthy life and whether a Yorkshire and Humber trend line could be included in the overview.

The Board was advised that in Kirklees, there are some excellent local strengths, assets and unique features as well as some key health and wellbeing challenges.

RESOLVED - That the updated KJSA be endorsed by the Board.

32 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) Local Transformation Plan Refresh

Tom Brailsford, Head of Joint Commissioning, Children attended the meeting to provide an update on the CAMHS Local Transformation Plan Refresh, advising that the plan was currently in draft form until it had been endorsed by the Board.

Cllr Smaje asked a question in respect of the reduction in the number of Autism assessments. In response, Cllr Smaje was advised, that the reduction in assessments was partly due to the loss of non-recurrent funding. Initially, when the funding went in, it brought assessments up to approximately 24 per month, however

the lack of this funding has reduced assessments to approximately 19 per month. The Board was advised that the situation is being closely monitoring in conjunction with the CCGs.

The Board was informed that South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation Trust has invested in a new tool which will cut the Assessment waiting time down and the generic tier 3 waiting time had come down.

The number of priorities in the transformation plan have been further reduced to provide much more focus.

In summary, the Board was further informed that the council had invested in family group conferencing for vulnerable children and Multisystemic Therapy. Northorpe Hall is doing a lot of work with schools. The Children's Survey had highlighted specific needs with LGBT groups and high levels of poor emotional health and wellbeing in girls.

RESOLVED -

- a) That the Board approve the Kirklees CAMHS Local Transformation Plan refresh, 2018
- b) That the Board will continue to maintain a strategic oversight of the plan.